
 

Water and Light Advisory Board 
January 5, 2010 

 
A meeting of the Water and Light Advisory Board was held January 5, 2009 at 8:00 a.m. at the Joe Paul 
Crane Building Conference Room, Water Distribution, 1510 Business Loop 70 E. Attending the meeting 
were: 
 
John Conway, Chair 
Tom Baumgardner, Member excused 
Tom O’Connor, Member  
Bob Roper, Member excused 
Dick Parker, Member  
Mike Schmitz, Interim Water and Light Director 
Dave Storvick, Acting Engineering Manager - Water 
Ryan Williams, Acting Engineering Manager - Electric 
Jim Windsor, Manager of Rates and Fiscal Planning 
Tina Worley, Utility Services Manager 
Tad Johnsen, Power Production Superintendent 
Dan Stokes, Electric Distribution Manager 
Floyd Turner, Manager, Water Operations 
Connie Kacprowicz, Utility Services Specialist 
Marilyn Thorpe, Administrative Support Supervisor 
Pam Mathews, Administrative Support Assistant 
 
APPROVAL FOR THE December 1, 2009 MEETING MINUTES   
The December 1, 2009 meeting minutes were approved by voice vote on a motion by Tom O’Connor and a 
second by Dick Parker. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
a) Transload Facility – Mike Schmitz reported that if by January 11, 2010 a new operator for the Transload 
facility has not been identified, the Water & Light Dept. will then be required, per the existing agreement, 
to purchase the building for $2.4 million. Mr. Schmitz explained that this is not a new contract, but a clause 
in the 2003 contract that we are bound by. There are currently two temporary employees at the facility. The 
money for the purchase will be transferred from retained earnings. The City Council will have to approve 
the transfer. Mr. Conway asked about viability or future potential operators. Mr. Schmitz said we are 
currently paying $37,000 per month to lease the building. That money would be saved if we owned the 
building. The steel market is picking up according to Tina Worley. As the economy improves, running the 
facility could again be profitable as Ms. Worley continues to develop the market. Mr. Schmitz said the 
property is estimated to be worth about $8 million, considerably more than the $2.4 million we would pay. 
John Conway asked in what condition is the building. Mike Schmitz said there are some issues with crane 
and equipment maintenance that they are addressing now. He added that the property taxes have been paid 
for the year. Dick Parker asked if Water & Light is considering keeping and running the facility. Mike said 
in order to make that decision they would have to study the issue and also review staffing the operation. 
Mr. Schmitz said there are some other possible uses for the building. Shapiro Brothers are currently leasing 
a portion of the building for their scrap metal operations and a dinner train operation has been proposed. 
Dick Parker asked if nearby recycling operations are being done there and Mike Schmitz said no. He said 
they will be very particular about the types of businesses at the site because there have been public 
concerns about keeping the area looking attractive. Tad Johnsen said that the scrap business has been going 
well and the area has been kept very tidy. Tom O’Connor asked if the transload facility was still operating. 
Mike Schmitz said it is up and running at about 20% capacity. Jim Windsor said the building will be owned 
by the electric department. Tina Worley said that the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDot) 



 2

recently completed an intermodal study. Mike Schmitz said there is not an intermodal facility in this area 
but that market may have some potential to be developed. 
 
b)  Demand Side Management (DSM) – Mike Schmitz introduced a PowerPoint presentation prepared by 
Tina Worley and Connie Kacprowicz providing a formal overview to the Board. The presentation defined 
DSM, outlined the goals from the IRP, usage reductions, rebates and loans, benefit and cost ratios, and 
funding. The DSM program was expanded in 2009 with additional funding and staffing. After the successes 
of the 2009 programs, the utility is ready to move forward with the expansion. The cost is expected to be 
$250,000 to assess 1,000 homes. The utility is evaluating software to measure and validate DSM programs. 
An important component of DSM is to demonstrate the costs and the benefits of expansion. It is hoped that 
the utility can share the software and associated costs with other municipalities. Tina Worley said she is 
currently working on accomplishing that.  
 During and after the presentation there were discussions about the different programs. Dick Parker 
asked if the utility would tap into the low income housing market. Tina Worley said we are currently 
working with Central Missouri Community Action and the Housing Authority. Jim Windsor said the focus 
should be on the high end users and we should be cognizant of the resources we have. Mike Schmitz said 
that a saturation study at a cost of about $40,000 will be conducted by an outside contractor. He gave the 
Load Management switches as an example. He said the A/C Tune-Up Pilot program would also be further 
evaluated. He said the utility is seeking stimulus funding for many of these projects.  
 Dick Parker handed out a comparison summary of efficiency programs between Austin Texas, and 
Columbia. He said that Austin’s water heating control program is more successful than their A/C switches. 
Tina Worley said that only 23% of Columbia’s water heaters are electric but she will be looking at that 
option. He also asked about vending machine controls. Ms. Worley said she had also checked into that but 
that the savings were not significant. Other DSM programs Mr. Parker recommended evaluating included 
increasing the maximum lighting rebate for large customers, LED’s for exit signs and other signs, and 
reflective roofs. In relation to low income housing, he said he thought that there were some things that we 
could provide without cost because they would save the utility money. In relation to rental property he 
suggested a program to support advertising of energy efficient facilities. 
 Mr. Parker asked if a rate study will be conducted. Mike Schmitz said the normal cycle for a rate 
study would be to have a new study completed in about two years. Jim Windsor said that our rate structure 
encourages efficiency. We are set up to track hourly consumption and can provide that data to our large 
customers. Mr. Parker said that he would like the rates to be structured in such a way that the first 500 kwh 
instead of the first 750 kwh be charged at a lower rate to encourage conservation. Mr. Windsor said that our 
current policy reflects a consideration of our low income customers who generally use less than 750 kwh 
but that lowering the 750 kwh to 500 kwh could be looked at. Mr. Parker also suggested that each level of 
cost and consumption should be detailed on the bills. Connie Kacprowicz explained how the bills are set up 
now and that the I.T. Steering Committee would have to be approached to discuss any changes regarding 
the billing format. She said some utilities provide an annual breakdown. 
 Mr. Parker asked about ERT meters. Dan Stokes said that we do not have a program to install any 
new commercial ERTs right now because technology is rapidly changing and we would like to see what 
will be available in the future. 
 Mr. Parker said he would like to see a greenhouse gas report as recommended in the PURPA 
documents. Connie Kacprowicz showed where the power source information was available on the website.  
 Tom O’Connor thanked everyone that worked on the DSM presentation. He summarized with the 
following questions/issues to be reviewed: 
1) Rate Structure 
2) Bill feedback 
3) Rentals and building codes. 
4) Identify and target the largest consumers 
5) Investigate LED streetlight technology 



 3

6) See what the extremes are in levels and patterns of energy use. 
 Mr. Schmitz said he will recommend those items during the budget process. 
 Mike Schmitz said that the LED light issue is currently being studied. There is a proposed pilot 
program planned for Providence Road East to Grey Oak, 8 LED and 8 high pressure sodium lights will be 
installed and individually metered. The consumption and performance will be measured and tracked 
seasonally as well. Also, in parks that are not well served by electricity, dual solar and wind powered lights 
are being tested. These are not connected to the grid. Ryan Williams said some lights currently in service 
that are solar powered with compact fluorescent bulbs provided limited hours of illumination. He said light 
level analyses will be conducted on the LED pilot project. He said the most savings would not be realized 
from an energy reduction but from the fact that the fixtures and bulbs last much longer. This would be a 
savings to the utility as there would be less change outs by W&L crews. He said the LED’s were more 
‘light’ efficient than ‘energy’ efficient. He said that retrofit kits for high pressure sodium lights are also 
available. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
a) Financial Update – Mike Schmitz said that the Water Division is doing better and that the Electric 
Division had an operating loss primarily due to the increased costs for power. Tad Johnsen said that both of 
our production units were down in October. Mr. Conway asked when the audit process is expected to be 
completed. Mr. Schmitz said usually around the first of the year. 
 
a) Financial Update – The Board received the monthly financial statements ending January 4, 2010. 
 
Water and Electric Utility combined operations reflect an operating income of $252,877 for the two months 
ended November 30, 2009; compared to an operating income of $793,129 for the same period last year.  
This is a decrease of $540,252. 
 
The Water Utility has an operating income of $549,055 for the two months ended November 30, 2009; 
compared to an operating loss of $167,197 for the same period last year.  This is a increase of $716,252 in 
operating income. 
 
The Electric Utility has an operating loss of $296,178 for the two months ended November 30, 2009; 
compared to an operating income of $960,326 for the same period last year.  This is a decrease in operation 
income of $1,256,504. 
 
Operating revenues of the Electric Utility are up $227,189 compared to the same period last year. 
 
Operating expenses before Payment-In-Lieu-Of-Tax and Depreciation are up $1,340,793.  Fuel and 
Purchased power costs have increased $1,039,415. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
a)  Request from the Mayor’s Office - John Conway reported he has received a communication from the 
Mayor’s office for a report due by February 26, 2010.  He will forward a copy to the Board before the next 
meeting. 
b)  Mr. Conway said a selection committee for a new Water & Light Director has been appointed. Mike 
Schmitz said that on April 6th there will be a ballot issue that proposes to remove the Professional Engineer 
requirement from the W&L Director’s position.  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 



 4

a)  Dick Parker’s presentation – Mr. Parker handed out a corrected summary of his presentation that he 
made before the City Council. Mike Schmitz said that staff will present their evaluation of Mr. Parker’s 
recommendations at the February Board meeting. 
b)  Loan Program Evaluation – Mike Schmitz said that staff will also have a report on the current loan 
programs available at the next meeting. 
c) Status of the Renewable Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) – Status will be given at the next meeting. 
 Dick Parker commented that he was generally pleased with the current efficiency programs in place 
but would like to see the programs ramped up per the IRP. Mr. Schmitz reminded Mr. Parker that the IRP is 
a road map, not a mandate. d)  Mike Schmitz requested a special meeting to be scheduled to discuss the 
purchase of the third share of the Columbia Energy Center. This would allow the Board to make their 
recommendations to City Council prior to the contract introduction at the February 1st Council meeting. 
Mr. Conway suggested meeting on January 19, 2010. Mr. Schmitz said the contracts should be completed 
this week and made available to the Board for review. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
a)   Tom O’Connor asked about the disinfection by-product numbers. David Storvick said the data should 
be available on January 28, 2010. 
 
Next meeting date:  Tentative Special Meeting, Tuesday, January 19, 2010.  Regular meeting Tuesday, 
February 2, 2010 at 8 a.m. in the Utility Services Conference Room, 105 E. Ash St., Columbia, Mo. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

  


